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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Next Wave Multimedia Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Next Wave Multimedia Private Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss, including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and loss (including other comprehensive
income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Board report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
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adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the Financial
Statements.

Other Matter:

(@) The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024, were audited by
another auditor whose report dated 22 May 2024 expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except that in the absence of
sufficient appropriate audit evidence we are unable to comment whether back-up of the
books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode, have been kept
in servers physically located in India on a daily basis as explained in Note 39 to the financial
statements the matters stated in the paragraph (h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).
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(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income,
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31
March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) The reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and
paragraph (h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure C”.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.

a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the note 35 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 35 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2025.
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vi.

3.

As stated in Note 39 of the accompanying financial statements and based on our
examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of

audit trail feature being tampered with other than the consequential impact of the
exception given below. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as
per the statutory requirements for record retention.

The accounting software used for maintenance of payroll records of the Company is operated
by a third-party software service provider. In the absence of ‘Independent Service Auditor’s
Assurance Report on the Description of Controls, their Design and Operating Effectiveness’
(‘“Type 2 report’ issued in accordance with SAE 3402, Assurance Reports on Controls at a
Service Organisation), we are unable to comment on whether audit trail feature at the
database level of the said software was enabled and operated throughout the year.

As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company
has paid remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of
and limits laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For M S K C & Associates LLP (Formerly known as M S K C & Associates)
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number - 0015955/5000168

o

Ojas D.
Partner

Membership No. 109752

Joshi

UDIN: 25109752BMMMGM7851

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23 May 2025
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF NEXT WAVE MULTIMEDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management and Board of Director’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

For M'S K C & Associates LLP (Formerly known as M S K C & Associates)
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number - 0015955/5000168

Ojas D. Joshi

Partner

Membership No. 109752
UDIN: 25109752BMMMGM7851

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23 May 2025
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF NEXT WAVE MULTIMEDIA PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2025,

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report]

i. (a)A The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(@)B  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

i.  (b) Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management according to
a phased programme designed to cover all items over a period of 3 years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of Property, plant and equipment have been
physically verified by Management during the year. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

i. (c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no immovable
properties, and accordingly, the requirement to report under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

i. (d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued
its property, plant and Equipment and intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, the
requirement to report under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

i. (e} According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been
initiated or pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended and rules made thereunder.
Accordingly, the requirement to report under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

ii. (a) The Company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, the requirement to report under
clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

ii. (b) During any point of time of the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital
limits from Banks on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement
to report under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ifi. (@) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or
granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year. The Company has made
investment in the company.

iii (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, we are of the opinion that the investments made are not prejudicial to the
interest of the Company. Further the Company has not provided guarantees, given any
securities, accordingly requirement to report under the clause 3(iii)(b) with respect to
Guarantee provided and Security given are not applicable to the Company.

iv.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with
the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of investments made.
Further there are no loans, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections
185 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report
under clause 3(iv) of the Order to that extent is not applicable to the Company.
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V. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted
any deposits from the public nor any amounts which are deemed to be deposits, within the
meaning of the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
framed there under. Accordingly, the requirement to report under clause 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

vi.  The provisions of sub-Section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable
to the Company as the Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of
cost records for any of the products/ services of the Company. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including goods and services
tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax and other statutory dues
have been regularly deposited by the Company with appropriate authorities in all cases
during the year.

There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services tax, provident
fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax and other statutory dues in arrears as at 31
March 2025, outstanding for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

vii. (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by
us, there are no dues relating to goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute.

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which
are not accounted in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in Income-tax Assessment of the Company. Accordingly, the
requirement to report under clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ix. (a) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings or interest thereon due to any
lenders during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report under clause 3(ix)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ix. (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

ix. (c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, no
money was raised by way of term loans. Accordingly, the requirement to report under
clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ix. (d) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no were funds
raised on short term basis during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report under
clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ix. (¢) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture. Accordingly,
requirement to report under clause 3(ix)(e) of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

ix. (f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report under clause 3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

X. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting requirement
under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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X. (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partly, or optionally
convertible) during the year. Accordingly, the requirements to report under clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi. (a) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we report that no fraud by the Company or no
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year in the course of our
audit.

xi. (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under Section
143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 has been filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the
requirements to report under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xi. (c) As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistle-blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(xii)(a)
to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
Sections 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by applicable accounting
standards. Further the Company is a private company and hence the provisions of section
177 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, requirement
to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order in so far as it relates to section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

xiv. (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an internal audit
system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, requirement to report under clause 3(xiv) (a) to (b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the year,
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with its directors and accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions
of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 in clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) and accordingly, the requirements to report under clause
3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
during the year and accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (c) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report under clause 3 (xvi)(c)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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xvi. (d) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as defined in

Xvii.

Xviii.

Xix.

the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have any Core
Investment Company (as part of its group. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause
3(xvi)(d) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

Based on the overall review of financial statements, the Company has not incurred cash losses
in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. Accordingly,
the requirement to report under clause 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There has been resignation of the statutory auditor during the year, there were no issues,
objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditor.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios (as disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of
realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as
to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our verification,
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of
standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said Clause has
been included in the report.

For M'S K C & Associates LLP (Formerly known as M S K C & Associates)
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 0015955/5000168

Ojas D. Joshi
Partner

Membership No. 109752
UDIN: 25109752BMMMGM7851

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23 May 2025
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF NEXT WAVE MULTIMEDIA PRIVATE LIMITED.

[Referred to in paragraph 3(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Next Wave Multimedia Private Limited
on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Next Wave
Multimedia Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (“ICAI’).

Management’s and Board of Director’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAl. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

Head Office: Olympia Cyberspace, 10th Floor, Modute 4, 21/ 22, Alandur Road, Guindy, Chennai 600032, INDIA
Tel: +91 44 6131 0200 | LLPIN: ACK-7004
Ahmedabad | Bengaluru | Chennai | Gurugram | Hyderabad | Kolkata | Mumbai | Pune
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(Formerly known as M S K C & Associates)

Chartered Accountants
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For M S K C & Associates LLP (Formerly known as M S K C & Associates)
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number - 0015955/5000168

e

Ojas D. Joshi

Partner

Membership No. 109752
UDIN: 25109752BMMMGM7851

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23 May 2025

Head Office: Olympia Cyberspace, 10th Floor, Module 4, 21/ 22, Alandur Road, Guindy, Chennai 600032, INDIA
Tel: +91 44 6131 0200 | LLPIN: ACK-7004
Ahmedabad | Bengaluru | Chennai | Gurugram | Hyderabad | Kolkata | Mumbai | Pune



Next Wave Multimedia Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
(Amounts are stated in ¥ | akhs unless otherwise stated)

Notes As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2 14 22
Right-of-use asset 3 - N
Other intangible assets 2 805 207
Intangible assets under development 2 - -
Other Non Current Financial Assets 7A 203 -
Deferred tax assets 4 40 30
Income tax assets (net) 4 8 -
Total non-current assets 1,070 259
Current assets
Financial assets
- Investments 5 661 202
- Trade receivables 6 373 504
- Cash and cash equivalents 7 148 162
- Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 7 - 1,367
- Other financial assets 8 16 22
Other current assets 9 326 138
Total current assets 1,524 2,395
Total assets 2,594 2,654
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 10 33 33
Other equity 11 2,350 2,364
Total equity 2,383 2,397
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
-Finance lease liabilifies 12 - -
-Provisions 13 42 52
Total non-current liabilites 42 52
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Trade payables 14
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smaill enterprises 1 -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 154
small enterprises =
- Other financial kabilities 15 18 11
Other current liabilities 16 9 14
Current tax liabiliies (net) 4 - 19
Provisions 13 7 7
Total current liabifites 169 205
Total liabilities 211 256
Total equity and liabilities 2,594 2,654

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For M S K C & Associates LLP
(Formerly Known as M S K C & Associates)
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm isfration Number :

Ojas™D. Joshi
Partner
Membership No: 109752

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23 May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Next Wave Multimedia Private Limited
CIN:U723200TN1995PTC030106

T. Karthikeyan

Whole Time Director

DIN: 11024140

Place: Mumbai

Date: 23 May 2025

Al A

Sanjay Gopal Soni
Additional Director
DIN: 02762675

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23 May 2025



Next Wave Multimedia Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amaunts are stated-in ¥ Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Notes Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 17 2,223 2,192
Other income 18 65 101
Total income 2,288 2,293
Expenses
Content cost 19 511 473
Advertisement Cost 20 641 332
Employee benefits expenses 21 524 741
Finance cost 22 15 9
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 23 262 178
Other expenses 24 373 252
Total expenses 2,326 1,986
Profit / (Loss) before tax (38) 307
Tax expense 4
Current tax - 97
Deferred tax (14) (18)
(14) 79
Profit / (Loss) after tax (24) 228
Other comprehensive income {{ Loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation 27 14 (10)
Income tax relating to items that will ot be reclassified to profit or loss 4 4) 2
Other comprehensive income / (Loss) for the year, net of tax 10 (7)
Total comprehensive income / (Loss) for the year {14) 221
Eaming per equity share (equity shares, face value 7 100 each)
Basic 29 (72) 685
Diluted 29 (72) 685

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the statement of financial statements

As per our report of even date

For M § K C & Associates LLP

(Formerly Knownas MSK C & Associates)
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number - 0015955/S000168

Ojas D. Joshi
Partner
Membership No: 109752

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23 May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Next Wave Multimedia Private Limited
CIN:U72300TN1995PTC030106

R

T. Karthikeyan Sanjay Gopal Soni
Whole Time Director  Additional Director
DIN: 11024140 DIN: 02762675

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 23 May 2025 Date: 23 May 2025
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Next Wave MuHimedia Private Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts are stated in ¥ Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
31 March 2025

Year ended
31 March 2024

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments for

Fair value gain on investment

Depreciation on properily and equipment, induding intangible assets

Depreciation on right-of use asset

Reversal of lease fiabilties

Interest income on fixed deposits

Advance written off

Interest on finance lease Fability

Provision for gratuity and compensated absence

Bad debts written off

Profit on sale of property and equipment

Unrealized lossi(gain) on exchange fluctuation (net)
Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustment for working capital changes:

Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables

Increase / (Decrease) in provisions

Increase / {Decrease) in financial and other §iabilities

(Increase) / D in frade 7

(Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets

(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets

Cash generated / (used in) from operations

Income taxes paid {net)

Net cash flow generated / {used in} from operating activities {A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, ptant and equipment & Other Intangibles
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment & Other Intangibles
Other bank balance, net

Purchase of current investment

Convertible Note

Interest income on fixed deposits

Netcash flow generated I {used in) from investing activities {B)

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of lease liabilities (including nterest)
Interest paki on lease fiabiliies

Net cash flow used in fEnancing activities {C)

Netincrease / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {Ay+(B)+(C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand
Balances with bank in current accounts

Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 7)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the statement of financiat statements

{38) 307
(26) @)
262 148
- 30
- )
(25) (94)
_ 2
- 8
13 13
0 -
2 -
(1)) (7]
187 400
19) 109
©) (38)
2 (51)
132 98)
(197) ©
(188) (46)
(92) 277
(27) (78)
(119) 198
{855) ©
4 -
1,367 48
(433) (200)
-22 94
105 (66)
- (3)
- (3)
(14) 129
162 33
148 162
0 0
148 162
148 162

For MS K C & Associates LLP

{Formerly Known as MSKC & Associates)
Chartered Accountants

ICA! Firm Registration Number - 0015955/S000168

Ojas D. Joshi f
Partner “;\\ o

Membership No: 109752 %
SNCTTY
\-;--__

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23 May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Next Wave Multimedia Privats Limited
CIN:U72300TN1995PTC030106

g .

T. Karthikeyan

Whole Time Director
DIN: 11024140 DIN: 02762675
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 23 May 2025

"

Sanjay Gopal Soni
Additional Director

Date: 23 May 2025



Next Wave Multimedia Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts are stated in % Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Equity share capital:

Equity shares of face value of Rs. 100 each issued, subscribed and paid up

Amount in
lakhs

As at 1st April 2024 33
Add: Issued during the period -
As at 31 March 2025 33

_—

As at 1 April 2023 33
Add: Issued during the year ———
As at 31 March 2024 33
Other equity

Accurulated
- Share based g
. Securities Retained | General ohher
Particulars _ payment _ - Total
Lt reserve SERRgS o
income

Balance as at 1st April 2024 796 2,057 (483) 1 (6 2,364

- Profii for the year - - {24) - 24)

-Tn o G R - {2.057) - 2057 -

- Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - 10 10
Balance as at 31 March 2025 796 - {507 2,058 4 2,350
Balance as at 1 April 2003 96 2,057 {7t1) 1 1 2,143
- Profit for the year - - 228 - 228
- Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - 7) (7}
Balance as at 31 March 2024 796 2,057 {453) 1 {8) 2,364
The accompanying notes form an integral part of statement of financial statements
As per our report of even date
For M S K € & Assodiates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directars
{Formerly Known asMSKC & Associates) Next Wave Muttimedia Private Limited
Chartered Accountants CIN:U72300TN1995PTC030106

ICAl Firm Registration Number : 0015955/5000168

- TN A

Ojas D. Joshi T. Karthikeyan Sanjay Gopal Soni
Partner Whole Time Director Additional Director
Membership No: 109752 DIN: 11024140 DIN: 02762675
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 23 May 2025 Date: 23 May 2025 Date: 23 May 2025



Next Wave Multimedia Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statement
(Amounts are stated in ¥ Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

1 Material accounting policies and other explanatory information

Corporate information

Next Wave Multimedia Private Limited (the “Company”) incorporated in India on 8 February 1995. The Company is a subsdiary of Nazara
Technologies Limited, a listed public Company, there by becoming a deemed public Company. The Company is primarily engaged in providing
subscription / download of games / other contents through consumer base in India and worldwide and digital support services to group
companies. The registered office of the Company is sifuated at 1st Floor, Old No-98, New No -165 Avvai Shammugham, Anna Salai, Royapettah,
Chennai, Tamil Nadu 600014,

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of Board of Directors on 23 May 2025

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and accrual basis, except for the certain financial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value.

The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the pericds presented, except for new accounting standards adopted by the
Company.

Monetary amounts are expressed in Indian Rupee (3} and are rounded off to Lakhs, except for eaming per share uniess otherwise stated. Amount
presented as “0" are non-zero numbers rounded off in ¥ Lakhs. Due 1o rounding off, the numbers presented throughout the document may not
add up precisely to the totals and percentages may not precisely reflect the absolute figures.

The financial statements oofrespond to the classification provisions contained in Ind AS 1, “Presentation of Financial Statements”. For clarity,
various items are aggregated in the statement of profit and loss and batance sheet. These items are disaggregated separately in the notes to the
financial statements, where applicable. The materiai accounting policy information related to the preparation of the financial statements have been
discussed in the respective notes.

Recent accounting pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Campanies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 from time to time.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*“MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended 31st March, 2025, MCA has notified amendments to Ind AS 116 - Leases,
refating to sale and leaseback transactions, which is applicable to the Company w.ef. 1st April, 2024. The Company has reviewed the new
pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that it is not likely to have any significant impact in its financial statements

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabifities in the balance sheet based on current! non-current classification. An asset is treated as cumrent when
it is:

= Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normat operating cycle

= Held primarily for the purpose of frading

* Expected to be realized in normai aperating cycle or within twelve months after the reporting period or

¢« Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to sefle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
Al other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when: )

* It is expected to be settled in normat operating cycle or due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period

* It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

* There is no unconditional night to defer the setifement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and fiabifities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company
has identified period of twelve months as its operating cycle.

The areas involving significant judgement and estimates are as follows:
* Estimation of useful life of property and equipment and intangible asset
* Impairment of non-financial assets

* Estimation of defined benefit plan and compesnated absences

« Estimation of provision for tax and deferred tax




Next Wave Multimedia Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statement
{Amounts are stated in ¥ Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

)

(vi)

(vii)

New standards and amendments issued but not effective.
There are no such standards which are notified but not yet effective

Estimation of useful life of property and equipment and intangible asset

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation/ amortization is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the
expected residual value at the end of its life. Management at the time the asset is acquired/ capitalized and reviewed periodically, including at
each financial year end, determines the useful lives and residual values of Company’s assets. The lives are based on historical experience with
similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may affect their life, such as changes in technology. The estimated useful life is
reviewed at least annually.

Impainment of non-financial assets

Property and equipment and intangible assets are tested for impairment whenever events occur or changes in circumstances indicate that the
recoverable amount is less than iis carrying vaiue. The calculation of value in use and fair value involves use of significant estimates and
assumptions, which includes turnover, growth rates and net margins used to calculate projected future cash flows, risk adjusted discount rate,
future economic and market conditions.

Defined benefit plan and compensated absences

The cost of the defined benefit pians, compensated absences and the present value of the defined benefit abligations are based on actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the fulure. These include the determination of the discount-rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due fo the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Revenue from contract with customer
The Company is recording revenue from in-app purchase on a gross amount and the advertisement revenue on a net amount of consideration
received from customer as per Ind AS 115 "Revenue from contract with customers"”

To determine whether the Company should recognize revenues, the Company follows 5-step process:
a. identifying the contract, or contracts, with a customer
b. identifying the performance obligations in each contract

¢. determining the transaction price

d. allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations in each contract

€. recognizing revenue when, or as, we satisfy performance obligations by transferring the promised goods ar services

The transaction price is usually fixed, but may also include variable considerations such as volume or cash discounts. The revenue further
adjusted with indirect sales taxes and exchange rate differences relating to sales in foreign currency is presented as net sales.

The following criteria apply in respect of various revenue streams:

b. In-app sale of virtual items: Revenues attributable to the sale of one-time in-gamefapp virtual items, including skills, privileges, or other
consumables, features or functionality, to the players! users, are recognized after the underlying performance obligations have been satisfied.

C. In case of revenue from adverisement, Company has assessed that platform service providers are Company’s customers in such contracts.
Hence revenue is recorded at the consideration recejved from the customer.

Income from services

Revenue from advertising services is recognized in the period in which advertisements are displayed.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, considering contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits wili flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.

The billing / coliection in excess of revenue recognised is presented as deferred revenue in the balance sheet whereas unbilled revenue is
recognised within other current financial assets.

Financial instrument
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets, except for trade receivables, are recognised at fair value. Trade receivables are initially recognised at transaction price.
Subsequent measurement

.For pumposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three broad categories:

. Financial assets at amortized cost °

. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCH

. Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)



Next Wave Multimedia Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statement
(Amounts are stafed in ¥ Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Financial assets at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cast (net of any write down for impairment) the asset is held to collect the contractual cash flows
(rather than to self the instrument prior to its contractual maturity {o realize its fair value changes) and The contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (*SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included
in other income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized statement of profit and loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCH)

A financial asset that meets the following two condifions is measured at fair value through OCI unless the asset is designated at fair value through
profit and loss under fair value option.

. The financial asset is held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell.

. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
FVTPL is a residual category for Company's investiment instruments. Any instruments which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVQCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

All equity investments (except investment in subsidiary, associate and joint venture) included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair
value with all changes recognized in Statement of profit and loss

In addition, the Company may elect to designate an instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However,
such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency {referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Derecognition

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material detay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arangement; It evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized when:
. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

. Based on above evaluation, either (2) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company
has neither transfered nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also
recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a bases that reflect the rights and obligations
that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies expected credit loss {'ECGL’) model for measurement and recognition of loss allowance on the following:
i. Trade receivables

ii. Financiat assets measured at amortised cost (other than trade receivables)

In case of trade receivables, the Company follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to lifefime ECL is measured and recognised as
loss allowance. The Company computes ECL based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed default
rates over the expected life of frade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. The default in collection as a percentage to total
receivable is low and overall expected credit loss is not material o these financial statements.

Financial assets classified as amortised cost (listed as ii above), subsequent to initial recognition, are assessed for evidence of impairment at end
of each reporting period basis monitoring of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition. it considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.

If the credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an amount equal to 12-month ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance.
However, if credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognised as loss allowance.

Subsequently, if the credit quality of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Company reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering the financial asset
in its entirety or a portion thereof. A write-off constitutes a derecagnition event.




Next Wave Multimedia Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statement
(Amounts are staled in ¥ Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

b) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair vaiue through profit and loss or at amortized cost, as

appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized i
transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities

Subsequent measurement

nitiafly at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
include trade payables, lease obligations, and other payables.

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and barrowings and other payables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit and loss when the liabilittes are derecognized as well as through the EIR

amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortization is included as finance casts in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the originai liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. '

¢) Offsetting of financial instruments

nancial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reporied in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right

Fi
to offset the recognized amounts and there is an inte

d) Reclassification of financial assets

ntion to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initiat recognition, no reclassification is made

The
for financial assets which are equity instruments and

{viii) Income tax

Income tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax it is recognised in the statement of profit and loss or to an item which

is recognised directly in equity or in other comprehen:
i) Current tax

sive income.

Current tax is the expecied tax payable on the taxable income for the year using applicable tax rates for the relevant period, and any adjustment to
taxes in respect of previous years. Interest expenses and penalties, if any, related to income tax are included in finance cost and other expenses
respectively. Interest Income, if any, related to income tax is included in other income.

ii} Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxatian purposes.

{ix) Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost of property, plant and equipment comprises purchase price, non-

refundable taxes, levies, and any directly atfributal

ble cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. After initial

recognition, property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depraciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The




Next Wave Multimedia Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statement
(Amounts are stated in ¥ Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(x)

(i)

(xii)

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the componeny/ part has a cost which is
significant to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset.

Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from financial statements, either on disposal or when retired from active use. Losses arising in case
of retirement of property and equipment and gains or losses arising from disposal of property and equipment are recognized in statement of profit
and loss in the year of cccurrence.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Useful lives (except computer) used
by the Company are different from rates prescribed under Schedule |i of the Companies Act 2013. These rates are based on evaluation of useful
life estimated by the management supported by internal technical evaluation. The range of useful lives of the property, plant and equipment are as
follows:

Nature of assets Useful life
Computer equipment 3years
Office equipment 3 years
Fumiture and fixtures 5 years
Vehicles 3 years
Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow to the Company
and the cost of the asset can be measured refiably.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost
less any accumutated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding the amount at which
development cost is capitalised, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is charged to Statement of profit or loss in the period in which the
expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset
are considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Company amortised intangible assets over the period of 6 years, as the Company expects to genereate future benefits from the given assets for a
period of 6 years.

The amortization expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying
value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unif's (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time vaiue of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken info account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation mode! is used.

The impaiment calculations are based on detailed budgets and forecast calculations for each of the Company’s CGUs covering a period of five
years and applying a long-term growth rate to project future cash flows after the fifth year. Impairment losses of operations are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

At each reporting date if there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased, the Company
estimates the asset's or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss only
to the extent of lower of its recoverable amount or carrying amount net of depreciation considering no impairment foss recognized in prior years
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was

recognized.

The management assesses internal or extemal indicators at every reporting date, including but not limited to asset's market value, changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal enviranment in which the entity operates, change in market interest rates, market capitalisation,
obsolescence or physical damage of an asset, and the economic performance of an asset when compared to its expectation.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.
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{xiv)

{(xv}

{xvi)

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature,
any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flows. The cash fiows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Earnings per share

Basic eamnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (excluding ather comprehensive income) for the year atributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year is adjusied for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a right issue, shares spiit and resesve share splits
(consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the pericd attributable to equity shareholders after taking into
account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares and the weighied average
number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker. The Board of
Director of the Company has been identified as Chief Operating Decision Maker as defined by Ind AS 108,"Operating Segments”. The Board of
Director regularly monitors and reviews the operating result of the whole Company as one segment of" Information Technology related services".
Thus, as defined in IndAS 108 “Operating Segmenis”, the Company’s entire business falls under this one operational segment.

The Company is primarily engaged in providing subscription / downicad of games / other contents through consumer base in india and woridwide
and digital support services to group companies.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instrument such as investments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid fo transfer a liabilily in an orderly transaction between market parficipants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability - or

* In the absence of a principal mariet, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principat or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

° Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
* Level 3 — Valuation technigques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

Currently Company carries those instruments where in level 1 inputs of the above mentioned fair value hierarchy is used.

The Company’s board Committee approves the policies for both recurring and non-recurring fair value measurement Where seen appropriate
external valuers are involved. The board committee reviews the valuation resuits. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used in the
vaiuations.

For financial assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial stalements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred betwaen levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. Exiernal valuers are involved for valuation of significant financial assets and
liabilities. The management selects external valuer on various criteria such as market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained by valuer. The Management decides, after discussions with the Company's external valuers, which
valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of financial assets and liabiliies on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the leve! of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. Judgemenis include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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ifi)

3

]

Right-of-use assets

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions

Termination .

Amortisation for the year (Note 23)
Balance at the end of the year

Income tax

Income tax {liabilities) / assets
income tax (liabilities) / assets

Amounts recognised in profit or loss
| tax exy in the Staty of Profit and Loss consists of:
Current income tax

-Current tax for the year

-Deferred tax credit
Incomlaxexpensemportedinmema?mﬁtm Loss
Income tax recognised in omeronmpmhensiveincome
-Deferved tax expensearisingonhcomeandexpense recognised in
other comprehensive income
Total

The reconciliation of esti i tax
March 2024:

Profit / (Loss) before tax

Enacted income tax rate in India

Computed expected tax expense

Taxeﬁectofmumﬂidlaenotdedunﬁblel“‘ ble} in cal

Asat As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
0 151

- (121}

- (30)

[1] 0

8 (19)

8 (19)

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
- 97

(14) (18)
{(14) 79

4 2
{10} 76

¥ mwmmimmemusereponedin%tmtomeﬁtmLossisasfoumsforﬂIla’l:hzozsand:ﬂ
~

Others
Income tax expense

Immwmhwmim

Deferred taxes (net)

Deferred tax liabilites arising on account of:
Property and equipment and intangible assets
Investment in mutual fund

Deferred tax %s arising on of:

Property and equipment and intangible assets
Provision for empioyee benefit expenses
Carry Forward Business Loss

Netdefemdtax(asses)lliﬂiﬁes

(38) 307
25.17% 25.17%
(10) 77
- 1)
(10) 76
(10) 76
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

53 -

3

56 -
- 15
12 15

84 -
9 30
(40) (30)
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5A

6.1

Deferred tax laibitities /( ), net

Particulars Property, Fair value Right of lease Provision for Allowance Carry Forward of Total

plantand gainon useasset liabilities gratuity and for BusinessLoss

equipment  investmen p i KF |

and ts absence  creditioss
intangible
assets
As at 31 March 2023 4 - 38 (30) (21) - - [C]
{charged)/credited
o profit and loss (19) - (38) 30 9 - - (18)
- to other comprehensive income - - ~ (2) - - (2)
As at 31 March 2024 (15) - - - {15) - B (30)
(charged)/credited
-to profit and ioss 68 3 - - (1) - (84) (14)
- to other comprehensive income - - - - 4 - - 4
As at 31 March 2025 53 3 - - (12) - (84) (40)
Current Investments As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 202:
Units* A Units* A

Investments carried at fair value through statement of profit and
loss )
Unguoted mutual funds (fully paid)
Bajaj Finserve Banking and PSU Funds 1,998,554 224 635,096 66
Edelweiss Arbitage Funds 373,789 76 373,789 71
Tata Gilts Securities Fund 143,683 124 83,635 66
Invesco Arbitrage Fund Direct Grawth 600.383 204 - =
Total (A} 3,116,409 628 1,092,520 202
Aggregrate Vakie of Quoted investments - - - -
Aggregrate Value of Unquoted investments 3,116,409 628 1,082,520 202
Other
Investment in Convertible Note (Refer Note 5A) - 33 -
Total (B) - 33 - -
Total Investments {A+B) 661 202

*Units are in absolute numbers

In July 2024, Ne:dwaveMmﬁnediaPrivaeLtd.hm'nvastedRs!{ﬂachshRaﬁmSinphWalGan&stmeLﬂhﬁefumowawaﬂﬂeNme,ﬂeagmﬂmaygam
Security rights to Nextwave as per the ters mentioned in the Share subscription and Shareholder's agreement.

As at As at
Trade receivables 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 373 504
Less - Provision for expected credit loss - -
Trade receivable - net 373 504
A due to rek parties out of the above trade receivables

No trade receivables are due from directnrsorotheroﬁioersofthecornpanyeimerseverallyorjoimlywithanyoﬂ\erpersonorﬁrmsorptivatecompanies inwhich any direcioris a
partner, a director or a member. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on credit terms of 30 to 60 days. The Company does not hold any collateral security.

Trade Receivable Schedule As at 31st March 2025

Oulstmdingforfnllowingperiodsfromduedateofpaymem
NotDue lessthan 6 months - 1-2yoars  2-3years More than 3 years Total
6 months 1 year

Undisputed trade receivables - Considered good 308 22 43 - - 373
Undisputed irade receivables - which have significant

increase in credit risk - - - - - _ _
Undisputed trade receivables - Credit impaired - - - - - - -
Disputed trade recsivables - Considered good - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables - which have significant

increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables - Credit impaired - - - - - - -
Totgl 308 2 43 [1] [1] ['] 373

Trade Receivabie Schedule As at 31st March 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
NotDue lessthan 6 months- 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 years Total
6months 1 year

Undisputed trade receivables - Considered good 164 78 244 18 - - 504
Undisputed trade receivables - which have significant

increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
Undisputed trade ivables - Credit impaired - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables - Considersed good - e - - - - ~
Disputed trade receivables - which have significant

increase in credit risk - - - - _ - .
Disputed trade receivables - Credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total 164 78 244 1860 = = 5a
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7A

Cash and cash equivalents*
Balances with banks
In cuent accounts
Cash on hand
Totat Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Deposits with banks with original maturity of more than three months
but less than 12 months

Total bank balances ather than cash and cash equivalents

* Thereis no iation r iction in respect of cash and cash equivalents.

Other Non Current Financial Assets

Deposits with banks with original maturity of more than 12 months
Accrued Interest

Other financial assets
Security deposit
Others advances

Other current assets
Balance with government authorities -GST Receivable
Prepaid expenses

This space has been infentionally left blank

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
148 162
0 0
148 162
- 1,367
- 1,367
148 1,529
200 -
3 -
203 -
16 22
0 0
16 22
314 128
12 12
326 138
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Next Wave Multimedia Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statement
{(Amounts are stated in ¥ L akhs unless otherwise stated)

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Number*  Amount Number* Amount
10 Equity share capital
Authorised
Equity shares of ¥ 100 each 45,000 45 45,000 45
45,000 45 45,000 45
Issued, subscribed and paid up
Equity shares of ¥ 100 each 33,335 33 33,335 33
33,335 33 33,335 33

{a) There were no movement in the share capital during the current and previous year.

(b) Shares held by the holding company and promoters

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Number* Amount Number* Amount
Name of the sharehoider
Nazara Technologies Limited (holding company) 24,960 25 23,960 24
P R Rajendran (promoter) 4,917 5 5,504 6
P R Jayashree (promoter) 2,932 3 3,282 3

(c) % changein shareholding

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Name of Shareholders Number* % Holding Number 9% Holding
Nazara Technologies Limited 24,960 75% 23,960 72%
P R Rajendran 4,917 15% 5,504 17%
P R Jayashree 2,932 9% 3,282 10%
32,809 99% 32,746 98%
(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% share in the company
Name of the shareholder Number* % Holding Number* 9% Holding
Nazara Technologies Limited 24,960 75% 23,960 72%
P R Rajendran : 4,917 15% 5,504 17%
P R Jayashree 2,932 9% 3,282 10%

*Number of shares are in absolute number

(d) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has single class of equity shares having a par value of 2100 per share. Each holder of equity shares is enfitled to one vote per
share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting except
in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares shall be entitled fo receive balance of the
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of ail preferential amounts and the distribution shall be in proportion to the number of

equity shares held by the shareholders.

{e) Buy back of share /bonus shares

There were no shares issued pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, alloted as fully paid up by way of bonus issues and

buy back of shares during the last 5 years immediately preceding previous years.
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11 Other equity As at As at
31March 31 March
2025 2024
Securities premium (refer note i}
Balance as at the beginning of the year 796 796
Add: Addition during the year - -
Balance as at the end of the year 796 796

General reserve (refer note iii)

Balance as at the beginning of the year 1 1
Add: Transfer from Share based payment reserve 2,057 -
Balance as at the end of the year 2,058 1
Share based payment reserve (refer note v}
Balance as at the beginning of the year 2,057 2,057
Less: Transfer to general reserve (2,057) -
Balance as at the end of the year - 2,057
Retained eamings (refer note ii)
Balance at the beginning of the year (483) (711)
Add : Transferred from Statement of profit and loss (24) 228
Balance at the end of the year {507) {483)
Accumuiated other comprehensive income {refer note iv)
Balance at the beginning of the year 6) 1
Add : Transfer from other comprehensive income 10 (7)
Balance at the end of the year 4 (6)
Total other equity 2,350 2,364
Notes to other equity:

i) Securities premium reserve
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. These reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provisions
of the Act

ii) Retained eamnings
Accumulated profit / (loss) in the statement of profit and loss pertain to the accumulated eamings made by the Company over the years

ili) General reserve
The reserve was created out of profits and kept aside for general purpose and financial strengthening of the Company in accordance with
erstwhile Companies Act, 1956.

iv) Accumulated other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income represents remeasurement of defined benefits liability which comprises of actuarial gains and losses, the effect
of the assets ceiling, excluding amounts included in the net interest on the net defined benefits liability.

v} Share based payment reserve
The share-based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of equity-settled share-based payments provided to empioyees, including
key management personnel, as part of employee benefit expense.
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As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

12 Lease liabilities

Opening balance (1)) 0
Additions - -
Interest Expense on lease liability cost (Refer note 22) - 8
Payments - -
Termination - (8)
Exchange differences -
Closing balance {0) 0)
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Non-current Current  Non-current Current
13 Provisions
Provision for gratuity (refer note 27) 31 5 37 4
Provision for compensated absences (refer note 27) 11 2 15 3
42 7 52 7

This space has been intentionally left blank
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14

14.1

15

16

Trade payables
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note (a) below)

-'Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note
25)

Note (a)

As at

As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

134

154

135

154

The Company has transactions with micro and smail suppliers registered under the Micro, Small Enterprises Development Act 2006

(MSMED Act) for the year ended 31 March 2025 but does not have any transactions for the period ended 31 March 2024.

Trade Payables Ageing As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
MSME Others MSME Others

Not due 1 126 - -
Less than 1 year - 8 - 140
1-2 years - - 12
More than 2 years - - 1

1 134 - 154
Note : The company does not have trade payables on account of any disputes.
MSMED Disclosure
Disclosure relating to suppliers registered under MSMED Act based on the information available with the Company:

As at As at

Particulars

(a) Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year:

Principal amount

Interest due thereon

Total

(b} The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, along with
the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting
year.

(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under the MSMED Act.

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.

(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disaltowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act.

Other financial liabilities
Accrued expenses
Salary payable

Other current liabilities
Tax deducted at source
Employee provident fund payable

This space has been intentionally left blank

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

As at

As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

18 1"
0 0
18 11
8 12
1 2
9 14
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
17 Revenue from operations
- To related parties (refer note 25) - 78
- To others 2,223 2,114
Total 2,223 2,192
18 Other income
Fair value gain on investment carmied at fair value through profit and loss account 26 2
Interest income on fixed deposits 25 94
Reversal of lease liabilities - 4
Profit on sale of property and equipment 2 -
Provision written back (refer note 27) 4 0
Gain on foreign exchange fluctuation 8 -
Total &5 101
19 Content Cost
Consultancy fees 243 336
Webserver 261 136
Production 7 2
Total 511 473
20 Advertisement Cost
Sales promotion and business development
- To related parties (refer note 25) 28 31
- From others 813 301
Total 641 332
21 Employee benefits expenses
Salaries and wages
- To related parties (refer note 25) 64 117
- To others 436 595
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 27) 9 11
Gratuity and compensated expenses{refer note 27) 13 13
Staff welfare expenses 2 5
Total 524 ™
22 Finance cost
Interest paid on delay payments of statutory dues 15 1
Interest on finance iease liabilities - 8
Total 15 9
23 Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 2) 8 13
Amortisation on intangible assets(refer note 2) 254 135
Amortisation on right-of-use assets (refer note 3) . - 30

Total 252 178
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
24 Other expenses
Commission 157 69
Legal and professional expenses a7 75
Repairs and maintenance - Others 14 22
Rent (refer note 43) 46 36
Insurance
Rates and taxes 2 0
Payment to audtors
- Statutory audit* 8 12
Bad debts written off 0 2
Loss on exchange fluctuation (net) - 2
Corporate social responsibility expenditure (refer note 32) B
Miscellaneous expenses 44 23
Total 373 252
* Payment to auditors
Note
As auditor
-Statutory audit* 8 12
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25 Related party disclosures

Names of the related parties Description of relationship
Nazara Technologies Limited Holding Company
Nodwin Gaming Private Limited Fellow subsidiary
Absolute Sports Private Limited Fellow subsidiary
Datawrkz Business Solutions Pvi Lid Fellow subsidiary
OpenPlay Technologies Private Limited Fellow subsidiary
Mediawrkz Pte Ltd Fellow subsidiary
P R Rajendran - Director* Key management personnel
P R Jayshree - Director* Key management personnel
R Kalpana * Relative of Key management personnel
Sanjay Gopal Soni# Key management personnel
Senthit Govindan Key management personnel
Ajay Pratap Singh Key management personnel
T. Karthikeyans# Key management personnet
Christopher Franklin Joseph** Key management personnel

* P R Rajendran, P R Jayashree and R Kalpana ceased to be KMP w.e.f June 7th 2023.
** Christopher Franklin Joseph ceased to be KMP w.e.f December 21st 2024.

*** Sudhir Kamath ceased to be KMP w.e.f March 31st 2025

# Sanjay Gopal Soni appointed as Additional Director w.e f October 30, 2024 and T. Karthikeyan appointed as Whole Time Director

w.e.f March 31 2024

a) Transactions during the year

Foryearended For year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Salary and bonus **

P R Rajendran(*)

P R Jayshree(*)

R Kalpana

Christopher Franklin Joseph(*)
T. Karthikeyan

Revenue from operations
Mediawrkz Pte Ltd

Nazara Technologies Limited
Nodwin Gaming Private Limited

Sales promotion and business development expenses
Datawrkz Business Solutions Pvt Ltd

Nazara Technologies Limited

OpenPlay Technologies Private Limited

b) Balance as at year end

20
19
0

61 79
3 -

78

19 31

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Trade receivable

Mediawrkz Pte Ltd - 0
Nazara Technologies Limited - 9
Trade Payables

Nazara Technologies Limited 1 44

Datawrkz Business Solutions Pvt Lid

1 -

{*) Managerial remuneration has been paid / provided by the Gompany in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the

provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to the Act.

** Remuneration pertain to short term employee benefits. As the present value of obligation towards gratuity is determined for all the
employees in aggregate, the post-employment benefits and other long-term benefits relating to key management personnel cannot be

ascertained individually.

This space has been intentionally left blank
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26 Revenue

a)

Disaggregation of revenue

The Company majorily derives its revenue via ad-revenue and in-app purchases made by end user of the App to the intermediaries viz.
Apple, Google and Facebook. The intermediaries deduct their share of commission/ fees and pay the Company’s share of revenue on a
monthly basis. The Company also generates revenue from advertisements and a smali portion from comporate video making.

b) Performance obligations
The performance obligation of the Company is to provide customers with content developed for applications and applications as platform for
various advertiesments.
In case of in-app purchases, obligation is to make available the coins or additional features that a game user purchases. No refunds are
allowed after 48 hours of making purchase.
c) Timing of satisfaction of performance obligation
Revenues associated with the revenue from advertisements and In-app purchases are recognised as and when the entity transfers the
promised services to the customer. An asset is transfemred when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset, including In-App
purchase and revenue from performance-based advertising are recognized after ihe underlying performance obligations have been
satisfied.
d) Transaction price allocated to performance obligation
The Company is eaming advertisement revenue from apps through various platforms for which Company is receiving consideration.
Transaction price for the in-app revenue is booked at amount grass basis and commission paid to agents are expensed cut.
e) Disaggregated revenue information
The company eams its revenue from the sale of:
1. Revenue from In-app purchases
2. Revenue from sale of Ad space
Services transferred at a point | Services transferred over time |
Particulars Yearended| Year ended| Year ended) Year ended|
31 March 2025| 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1 |Advertisement services 1,159 1,644 - -
2 |in app purchases - - 1,040 461
3 |Other services - 72 25 16

This space has been intentionally left biank
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27 Retirement benefit plans

{A) Defined benefit obligation

(a) Contribution to gratuity fund
in accordance with the payment of gratuity under 'Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972' of India, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined retirement
benefit plan covering eligible employees. Liabilities with regard to such gratuity are determined by an independent actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit method and are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period determined.

The following table’s summarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the amounts recognised in
the Balance Sheet.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

1 Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

Current service cost 10 9

Net interest cost 3 5

Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 13 13
2 Expenses recognised in other comprehensive income

Remeasurement actuarial loss / (gain) (14) 10

Expenses recognised in other comprehensive income (14) 10

3 Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Liability at the beginning of the year 41 65
Interest cost 3 5
Current service cost 10 9
Benefit paid ) 47)
Actuarial (gains) losses on defined benefit obligations

-arising from changes in financial assumptions 1 1
-arising on account of experience changes (15)

Liability at the end of the year 36 41

4 Reconciliation of net liability recognised:

Opening net liability 41 65
Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 13 13
Expense recognised in other comprehensive income (14) 10
Benefits paid during the year (4) {47)
Amount recognised in the balance sheet 36 41
Unfunded

Current 5 4
Non current 31 37

5 Actuarial assumptions

Discount rate per annum 6.59% 747%
Rate of salary increase 12.00% 12.00%
Rate of employee turnover 16.30% 16.30%
Mortality rate Indian Assured  Indian Assured

Lives Mortality  Lives Mortality
(2012-14) (2012-14) Urban

Urban
6 Sensitivity analysis
Discount + 1.0% @ (2)
Discount - 1.0% 2 3
Salary growth rate + 1.0% 2 2
Salary growth rate - 1.0% {(2) 2)
Attrition rate + 1.0% N (1)
Attrition rate - 1.0% {n 1
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27 Retirement henefit plans (continued)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

7 Maturity analysis of projected benefit obligation

(b

(B

—

~—

1 year

2 year

3 year

4 year

5 year

6 to 10 years 1
More than 10 years 2

Wb MO
W@ D pphDdDS

The expected interest cost for the next 12 months is Rs. 3 Lakhs

Provision for compensated absences

The Company accrues for the compensated absences, a long term employee benefit plan based on the entire available leave balance standing to
forward, is determined by actuarial valuation as at the Balance sheet date and is charged to statement of profit and loss in the period determinec
2024: %(0) Lakhs.

Actuarial assumptions Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate per annum 6.59% 717%
Rate of salary increase 12.00% 12.00%
Rate of employee tumover 16.30% 16.30%
Mortality rate Indian Assured  Indian Assured

Lives Mortality  Lives Mortality
(2012-14) (2012-14) Urban
Urban

Defined contribution plan

Eligible employees of the Company receive benefits under the provident fund which is a defined contribution wherein both the employee and the
Company make monthly contributions equal to a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary. These contributions are made to the
Fund administered and managed by the Government of india. The Company's monthly confributions are charged o the statement of profit and
loss in the period they are incurred. The total charges for the year ended 31 March 2025 amounts to Z9 Lakhs and 31 March 2024: 11 Lakhs.

This space has been intentionally left blank




Next Wave Multimedia anate Limited
Notes ing part of fi |

(Amounts are stated in T Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
28 Financial instruments

(a)Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities
Al finanical assets and financial laibilities are measured at amortised cost as at the reporting date. The company considers the canrying vaiue of the financial assets and financiat
liabilities as on approximate estimate of the fair value.

{b)Financial risk ¢ objectives and polici

The Company is exposed pnmanly to ﬂuctuahons in foreign currency exchange rates, credit, liquidity and interest rate risk which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial
instrument. The Company has a risk management policy which covers risk associated with the financial assets and liabilities. The risk management policy is approved by Board of
Directors. The focus of the management commitiee is to assess the unpredictability of the financial environment and to mitigate potential adverse effect on the financial performance of
the Company. ’

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprises of trade and other payables and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of thesa financial liabilities is 1o finance the Company's
operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include investment in mutual funds, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other financial and non-financial assets that
derive directly from its operations.

The Company’s senior managemerit oversees the management of the risks inherent to the business.

Foreign currency risk management
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluciuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has foreign currency
trade payables and trade receivable and is therefore exposed to foreign exchange risk.

The Company is exy d to foreign ge risk on their receivables and payables which are held in USD.
The summary quantitative data about the company’s unhedged exposure to currency risk as reported to the management of the Company is as follows:

- As at 31 WMarch 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Partioulars ' INR usD INR usD
Trade receivables 195 2 461 6
Trade payables/ provisions 8 ] 6 0
Net exposure 187 2 455 6
Foreign curvency sensitivity

The following table demonsirates the sensitivity in USD with all other variables held constant. The below impact on the Company’s profit before tax is based on changes in the fair vaiue
of unhedged foreign curency monetary assets and liabilities at Balance Sheet date:

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Currency K by D by | Decrease by
5% 5% by 5% 5%

INR 9 {9) 23 (23)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty faikire to repay or sesvice debt according to the corractual terms and obligations. Credit risk encompasses of both, the
direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. The financial instruments that are subject to concentration of credit risk principally
consist of trade receivables, cash and bank balances, bank deposits and other financial assets.

Trade receivables are typically wr d and are derived from revenue eamned from customers. Credit risk has always been managed by each business segment through continuously
monnonngthecmdﬁworﬂmessofcustmnersmmtheCMpa'rygaﬂscfedMermsmthemmalumtseofhusness On account of adoption of ind AS 109, the Company uses
expected credit loss model to assess the impairment. The Company uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables . The provision matrix
takes into account factors such as default risk of industry, historical experience for customers etc. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of
each class of financial assets. At 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 receivables from Company's top 5 cusiomers accounted for approximately 81% and 78%, respectively of all the
receivables outstanding. As at 31 March, 2025 receivable from one top customer accounted for 21% of all receivable outstanding (31 March 2024 : 50%). An impairmerit analysis is
performed at each reporting date on an individual basis based on historical data.
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28 (bF ial risk jectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Amount not due 308 164
Up to 30 days 2 35
30 - 90 days 0 42
90 - 180 days ] 70
More than 180 days 43 192
Total 373 504
Allowance for expected credit loss - -
Total 373 504

The Company does not hold collateral as secuity. The Company evaluates that there exists concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables due to its dependency on limited
numbersofastmnasfmasigiﬁcaﬂpmﬁondmcewabbsmg.mhabﬁymmmeammmtpaydﬂebystmmpmanersmayhavea\adverseimpactontheir
recoverability. Bankba!amesanddepositsareheldwihorﬂymmratedbanksandsecmtydeposhsareplacedforlemingpwposemly. Hence, in such cases, the cred risk is

negligible.

Liquidity risk E

The risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting its present and future cash and collaterat obligations associated with financial liabilities that are seftled by delivering cash or
another financial asset without incurring unacceptable losses. Liquidily risk mar it impli i \ce sufficient cash including availability of funding through an adequate

amount of committed credit faciities to meet the obligations as and when due.

The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring as far as possible that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its short term and long term liahilittes as and when due. Anticipated
future cash flows are expected to be sufficient to mest the liquidity requirements of the Company. Management monitors the Company's net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on

the basis of expected cash flows.
Contractual maturities of the ial liabilities:
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Particulars Less than 1 year Over 1 year| Total Less than 1 year Over 1 year| Total
Traxle payables 135 - 135 194 - 154
Other financial Babilties : 18 - 18 1 - 1
Total 153 = 153 165 - 165
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of interest rate risk and
other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk.

Capital Management

The key objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a stable capital structure with the focus on total equity to uphiold investor, creditar, and customer
confidence and to ensure future development of its business. The Company focused on keeping strong {otal equity base to ensure independence, security, as welt as a high financial
flexibility for p izl future b ings, if requived without imp ".gmeﬁskpmﬁleofmeCompa!y.Therea'embmwingshMeCmnmasamMan:h2025and31Mach2024.

(c) Financial assets and financial fiabilities

(i) Details of financial assets { fed at fair value)
Monday, March 31, 2025  Sunday, March 31, 2024
Irwestment in mutual funds 628 202
Total 628 202

(ii) Financial assets and liabilities (at amortised cost)
Monday, March 31, 2025  Sunday, March 31, 2024

Financial assets - non current

Other financial assets 203 -
Financial assets - cusrent
Trade receivable 373 504
Cash and cash equivalents 148 162
Bark Balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 1,367
Other financial assets 16 22
Total assets 740 2,055
Financial liabilities - non current
Finance lease liabilities [+] 0
Financial liabilities - current
Trade and other payables 135 154
Other financial iabilities 18 11
Total liabilities 153 165
Note:
Financial assets and liabiities inchude cash and cash equivalents, tax free deposits, trade tvables, unbilled receivables, finance lease receivables, employee and other advances,

eligible current and non-current assets, trade payables and eligible current fiabilities and non-current kabilities. The fair vatue of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, unbilled
receivables, trade payables, other curment financial assets and fiabilities approximate their carrying amount largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments, Investment in
mutual funds measured using net asset values at the reporting date muitiplied by the quantity held, which represens the fair value of these mstruments.
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{d) Fair value hierarchy for assets and Rabilities

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabifity in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current
market conditions.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the abilitytoobserveifpmsanphyed in their measurement which are
described as follows:

i) Level 1

Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

jii) Level 2

Other techniques for which ali inputs which have a siglmcatﬁfedmﬂnrmdedmvm are observable, either directly of indirectly.

jii) Level 3

Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.

mecanyiltga'runltandfairvdue at hi hy for ets as at March 31, 2025 is as follows:
Carrying Fair Value Fair value measurement using
Value Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Mutual funds 628 628 - 628 - 628
Total 628 628 - 623 - 628

The carrying amount and fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:
Carrying Fair Value Fair value measurement using

Total
Value levell  Levei2 Level 3 °

Mutual funds 202 202 ) 202 . 202

Total 202 202 . 202 . 202

29 Earnings per share
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the pwﬁtformeyearamibmabletoequity holders of the parentbytl’reweightedaveragemnberoquuityshares outstanding during the
year.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (24) 228
Basic weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 33,335 33,335
Earmnings per share:
Basic and diluted {72) 685
Nominal vahue per equity share 100 100
30 Contingent liabilities and commitments
There are no contingent fiabifities and commitments as at the balance sheet date.
31 Additional Regulatory fon in with Schedulk @ of the Companies Act, 2013
Ratio Noteshreference Nurmnesakor Notesf Denominainr Ratio %  |Reasonfor
refere L i (refer
ST Mer25| 3t-Mar-24| "ce | 31-Mar-25| 3t-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 | 31-Ma-24
Amount | Amourt | (n%)v= | (in%)vi= below)
Amount {i) | Amount (i) (&) {iv) {ip(ia) {i(ia) viiE{vHvi)

Current ratio (i Tunes) a 1524 2395 d 169 205 12 -23% 1
Retum on equity {in %) b 24y 228 | 10 2,390 2287 1% 10%) -110% 2
Trade payables turnover ratio (in Times) 1,525 1,058 135 154 11 i 85%| 3
Trade recsivables tumover ratio (in Times) 17 2223 2,192 e 438 452 5 5 5%
Net capital tumover ratio 17 2223 2,192 f 1,355 2,190 2 1 64% 4
Net profit ratio b (24} 228 | 17 2223 2192 1% 10% -110%| 5
Retum on capital employed c (23] 316 g 2,383 2,397 -1%) 13% 107%) 3]
Reference

a Total of current assets b. Profit after tax c. Profit before tax phus finance cost d. Totat of current liabilities e. Average of irade receivables f. Average of working capitat g. Total of
shareholders' funds.

Explanation

1. DecreaseismamlymamnﬂofdeaeaseinBad(balamaduebpurmaseofnwgamelP Ultimate Teen Patti

2. Thedeaeaseisduetottenegaﬁvemargins,whid\isduetoadeueaseinmeADbasedRevemeinwrentyear.

3, Increase is due to increase in spending during the current year for Advertisment and Content cost for new game 1P Ultimate Teen Patti.
4. lncreaseismainlymmdmmmmlmmmmmmhmmmemwabnm

5. Deueaseis@etohmeasehmdiuﬂspaﬂsmadeﬂigﬁeyeammwpwedmgaﬂep;uuhased

6. Thedecl'easeismetoﬁlenegaﬁvemaghs,wﬁchismetuadecreaseintl‘neADbasedRevemehcmerﬂyear‘




Next Wave Multimedia Private Limited
Notssfomingmrtoffinancialstatement
{AmountsarestatndinfLakhsun@soﬁemise@ated)

32

Corporate social responsibility .
TheCOmpanyhasassmedmeapplwﬁtynfmporaleSocialRosponsbiliﬁ(CSR)inmdanewilhﬂxeprwisbndsecﬁonﬁﬁofheCompaniesAﬂ,2D13a1doomhdedmat
mandatorycontribtnionmderhepmvisbnisndq;plwéefuﬂemmmyearmdedMstMard\znzﬁ

—

Year ended Year ended

et 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(a)&ossamtmiedszpﬂhumm&yﬂ - 496
(b)Amnl.Ilspentrhﬁngﬂeyeta:
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
{iiy On purpose other than (i) above - 496
(i) Shortfall at the end of the year - -
() Reason for shortfal N -

(c) Nature of CSR activities
(i) Others - 436

33 TheCompanyhasndtenteredmarwuasamimswimwnpariessmmkoﬁmdersecﬁmMSdMCmpmmAd,20130rsecﬁm5600f0anpanisAct, 1956.

34 Nomoe@dhgshavebeenwﬁatedapmtﬁrgawstmemmfmhddhgawbenanipropertymdermeBmaniTransadions(thibition)Ad, 1988(45d1988)andthem|es

35

37

38

40

made thereunder.

Mo funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds of share premium or any other SouFces or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities {“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on
behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries).

TheCompanyhasnMreoeivedanyﬁmmn any pasties (Funding Party) with the ur ding that the Comp SVBl!wheiher,dted!yoriﬂiecﬂylenduriwesthdherpersmﬁor
entities identified by or on behalf of the Company (*Ulimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries.

mmWimmmnmmmebakuﬁmﬂhmmmwmawwmm.

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current of previous financial year.

TheCompanyisengagedmmsmsddevebpimgan%mmsaevdvmuserwefmmmmmw gar and is considered to be the only
reportabieblsirlasseglneetasperhdl\smﬂ, Operating Segments.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)tmvidehe“Compania (Accounts) Fourth Amendment Rules, M"mumnedini\ugustmﬂmandaﬁng dailyhack:.msofall electronic
books of accourt and relevant documents under Rule 11(g).
Hawever,basedonimemalassessmema-ndmesize,naueaﬂu plexity, the pany mai '-sbackmdbod&ufanwxﬂsmammlybasismdaddﬁkxalbackupsasand

when considered 1 y by the manag it We consider the p dtaldngbadupsaeq:pmpﬁatea:ﬂeﬁecﬁm.

The Company uses an accounting software as a primary ERP system 1o record transactions and all the accounting entries and books are maintained in that software. The audit trail is
an inherent feature in such software and the same cannot be disabled.

TheCompanyhasbeenusinganomeraccowﬂingsdmareforpaymurecmdswhiehisopemtedbyaﬂﬁrd—paﬂysewiceprmider.ﬂeCmnpmyMsMbeenabletoobtain\he
‘IWWSWRWMMMM&W,MD&@MMMM (Typleepaﬁssuedhmda’mwiﬂhSAEMOZAsswame
ReponsmcmlsataServbeOrgmisaﬁm)formeyea'endedm March 2025 .

During the year, the Company dnesnottuavea'nyhmsacﬁonwﬁd\isnotreoorded mmebomsdammmatmsbwnsuremwedadjsdosedasimmnemmwar in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or sivey or any other relevant provisions of the income Tax Act,(1961). Accordingly, there are no fransactions which are
not recorded in the books of accounts.

41 The Company does not have any charges a'saﬁsfacﬁmwhichisyetmberegisteredMMRegiskarofCompanies (ROC)beymdmeskaMoryperiod.

42

43

44

TheCompanyMVenmuadedmmvatedhqyptmmemyvamremydﬁngmeﬁmialyea‘.

TheCmpaVssigifmﬁb@igmm\atsaehrespeddopemmbmesfwwmm.mIeasemangemertisforapaioddayea'adisralewahbbymlmalcmsem.
Renta|e)¢emesforcanoe|weleas&salelNR46|a!d'\s(31 March 2024 : INR 36 lakhs).

TheCompanydoesnotawnanyinmwablepmpeﬂhsmdhemedoesnottmhmyﬁﬂedeedsfmhnmwaﬂepmpeﬁes.

45 TteCotnpanyhasmirevahediispmpe@aﬂeqmm,rigﬁd-l.lseagetsandimmgbleassetsmmeyean

46 There aremad;usﬁngasimiﬁwﬁnm-aciwmgevemswhthhavemnedbetwmnﬁ March 2025 mdhedateofasﬂmisaﬁnnofﬂ%efuwwialsﬂanerﬁs,
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